
 
 

Agenda 
 

Extraordinary Audit Committee Meeting 
 
Date: Monday, 17 April 2023 
Time 7.00 pm 
Venue: Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, ME10 3HT* 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Derek Carnell (Chair), Simon Clark, Ann Hampshire, Angela Harrison, 
Mike Henderson (Vice-Chair), Denise Knights, Peter Marchington, Pete Neal and 
Richard Palmer. 
 
Quorum = 3 

 
  Pages 

Information about this meeting 
*Members of the press and public can listen to this meeting live. Details of how 
to join the meeting will be added to the website by 14 April 2023. 
 
Recording and Privacy Notice  
 
Swale Borough Council is committed to protecting the security of your personal 
information. As data controller we process data in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 2018 and the UK General Data Protection Regulation. 
 
This meeting may be recorded. The recording will be retained in accordance 
with the Council’s data retention policy and may be published on the Council’s 
website. By entering the chamber and by speaking at a meeting, whether in 
person or online, you are consenting to being recorded and to the recording 
being published. 
 
When joining a meeting online, your username will be visible to others in 
attendance. In joining the meeting you are consenting to us processing your 
username. You may use a pseudonym as your username but the use of an 
inappropriate name may lead to removal from the meeting. 
 
If you have any questions about how we look after your personal information or 
your rights under the legislation, please email 
dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk.  

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:dataprotectionofficer@swale.gov.uk


 

1.   Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 
Visitors and members of the public who are unfamiliar with the building 

and procedures are advised that:  

(a) The fire alarm is a continuous loud ringing. In the event that a fire 
drill is planned during the meeting, the Chair will advise of this. 

(b) Exit routes from the chamber are located on each side of the room, 
one directly to a fire escape, the other to the stairs opposite the 
lifts. 

(c) In the event of the alarm sounding, leave the building via the 
nearest safe exit and gather at the assembly point on the far side of 
the car park. Do not leave the assembly point or re-enter the 
building until advised to do so. Do not use the lifts.  

(d) Anyone unable to use the stairs should make themselves known 
during this agenda item. 

 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 

other material benefits for themselves, their families or friends.  

 

The Chair will ask Members if they have any disclosable pecuniary 

interests (DPIs) or disclosable non-pecuniary interests (DNPIs) to 

declare in respect of items on the agenda. Members with a DPI in an 

item must leave the room for that item and may not participate in the 

debate or vote.   

 

Aside from disclosable interests, where a fair-minded and informed 

observer would think there was a real possibility that a Member might be 

biased or predetermined on an item, the Member should declare this 

and leave the room while that item is considered.  

 

Members who are in any doubt about interests, bias or predetermination 

should contact the monitoring officer for advice prior to the meeting. 

 

 

Part B Reports for decision by the Audit Committee 
 

 

4.   Internal Audit Plan 2023-24 
 

5 - 16 

5.   Risk Management Annual Report 
 

17 - 28 

6.   Auditor Annual Report 2021-22 
 

29 - 56 

7.   Audit Plan 2022-23 
 

57 - 80 

 

Issued on Wednesday, 5 April 2023 
 



 

 

The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available 
in alternative formats. For further information about this service, or to 
arrange for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please 
contact DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out 
more about the work of the Committee, please visit 
www.swale.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council, 
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT 



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee Meeting  

Meeting Date 17 April 2023 

Report Title Internal Audit and Assurance Plan 2023/24 

EMT Lead Lisa Fillery – Director of Resources 

Head of Service Katherine Woodward – Head of Audit Partnership 

Lead Officer Katherine Woodward – Head of Audit Partnership 

Classification Open 

Recommendations 
1. Approve the Internal Audit & Assurance Plan for 

2023/24. This includes delegating to the Head of Audit 
Partnership authority to keep the plan current as set out 
in the appendix.  

2. Note the Head of Audit Partnership’s view that the 
Partnership currently has sufficient resource to deliver 
the Plan and a robust Head of Audit Opinion.  

3. Note the Head of Audit Partnership’s assurance that 
the Plan is compiled independently and without 
inappropriate influence from management  

 

1 Purpose of Report and Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the audit Partnership 

to produce and publish a risk-based plan, at least annually, to determine the 
priorities for the year. The plan must consider input from senior management and 
Members and be aligned to the objectives and risks of the Council.  

1.2 The purpose of this report is to set out the annual assurance plan 2023/24 to 
Members. The report details how the plan is devised, the resources available 
through the Partnership and the specific audit activities and engagement 
delivered over the course of the year. 

2 Background 
 
2.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) sets out the requirement for 

the Head of the Audit Partnership to develop a risk based internal audit plan to 
determine the priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the 
organisation’s goals. 

2.2 The Audit Committee needs to obtain assurance on the effectiveness of the 
control environment, governance and risk management arrangements. The 
principal source of this assurance is derived from the annual assurance plan. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2.3 Standards explicitly support that the plan is flexible and responsive to emerging 
and changing risks across the year. Any proposed changes and the rationale for 
such changes will be communicated to Audit Committee Members. 

 

3 Proposals 
 
3.1 The appendix sets out the proposed plan for 2023/24, including background 

details on how we compiled the plan and how we propose to manage its delivery. 
The proposal is for the Audit Committee to consider and approve the plan.  

3.2 We confirm to Members that, although the plan has undergone broad consultation 
with management, it is compiled independently and without being subject to 
inappropriate influence. 
 

 

4 Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
4.1 The Audit Committee as part of its terms of reference must retain oversight of the 

internal audit service and its activities. This includes the Committee’s role to 
formally consider and approve the plan. The Council could decide that it does not 
want a programme of work for the audit service, however, this would go against 
professional Standards. 

 
 
 

5 Consultation Undertaken or Proposed 
 
5.1 We consult with Managers, Heads of Service and Directors throughout the year 

as we undertake our work, but also specifically as part of the audit planning 
process. The plan attached represents the collective views of management and 
the audit service. 

 

6  Implications 
 

Issue Implications 

Corporate Plan Mid Kent Audit’s work supports all Council activity and the wider  

Corporate Plan in evaluating governance 

Financial, 
Resource and 
Property 

The work internal audit does on behalf of Swale Borough Council, 
is carried out within agreed resources.  

Legal, Statutory 
and Procurement 

The Council is required by Regulation to operate an internal audit 
service, including agreeing a plan at least annually. Therefore, the 
Council must approve a plan to maintain regulatory conformance.  

Crime and 
Disorder 

No direct implications 

Page 6



Environment and 
Climate/Ecological 
Emergency 

No direct implications 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

No direct implications 

Safeguarding of 
Children, Young 
People and 
Vulnerable Adults 

No direct implications 

Risk Management 
and Health and 
Safety 

The audit plan draws on the Council’s risk management in  

considering areas for audit review. In turn, audit findings will  

provide feedback on identification and management of risk. 

Equality and 
Diversity 

No direct implications 

Privacy and Data 
Protection 

We handled all information collected by the service in line with 
relevant data protection policies. 

 

7 Appendices 
 
7.1 The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 

report: 

• Appendix I: Internal Audit and Assurance Plan 2023/24  
 
 
 
 

8 Background Papers 
 
 The appendix includes reference to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

Further background papers, including detailed resource calculations, risk 
assessments and notes from consultation meetings can be made available on 
request. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



MID KENT AUDIT 
 

    
 

 

 

 

  

 

Internal Audit & 

Assurance Plan 2023/24 

 

 

 

Swale Borough Council 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



MID KENT AUDIT 
 

    
 

 

Introduction 

1.  This risk-based internal Audit Plan for 2023/24 provides adequate coverage to 

enable an annual Head of Audit Opinion to be made at the end of the financial year.  

 

2.  It is important that this Audit Plan has the flexibility to adapt and adopt to the 

changes and business priorities as they develop during the forthcoming financial 

year. 

Risk Assessments 
 

3.  The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards direct that audit planning is built upon a  

risk assessment. This assessment must consider internal and external risks, including  

those relevant to the sector or global risk issues. This Plan for 2023/24 represents 

the current views now, but it will be necessary to continue to reflect and consider 

the audit response as risks and priorities change across the year. A specific update 

report will be provided to Members midway through the year.  

 

Global and Sector Risks 

4.  In considering global and sector risks the risk assessment draws on various sources 

such as the IIA and CIPFA.  

5.  This year will continue to be another challenging year for Local Government in terms  

of funding, managing additional recruitment and technological advancement, which 

in turn may impact on the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance, risk and  

control framework of the Council. A number of key areas which require 

consideration when planning the internal audit coverage are set out below. These 

areas cut across many of the activities carried out by the Council. These areas are not 

a full listing, nor are they in any priority order. Indeed many are not mutually 

exclusive of each other. 

“Multi-channel” customer engagement: Partly as a result of COVID-19 but also as  

process changes through improved technology, councils will need to embrace cutting  

edge technology. Adopting a multi-channel approach to customer engagement will  

enable council services to be more readily available, more accessible and more  

transparent. 

Commercialisation: Councils are being driven towards being more self-sufficient and  

cost effective, with pressure to close funding gaps and rebalance budgets. Councils  

Page 10



MID KENT AUDIT 
 

    
 

will already be operating in different financial and more commercial environments 

which have been tested by the business disruption associated with the COVID  

Pandemic. 

Cyber Security: As more services move on-line, risks and vulnerabilities are likely to  

increase. Cyber security is as much about awareness and behaviours as it is about  

network security. Resilience needs to be regularly and stringently stress tested  

across the organisation to ensure it is operating effectively. 

Financial Viability: With Council’s emerging from the pandemic and Brexit, Councils 

have been faced with the reality of unbalanced medium financial plans without 

including significant potential savings. This has been further exaggerated as the 

country faces a cost-of-living crisis and is on the fringes of recession. The challenge 

to ensure a balanced budget is becoming more difficult for all councils. 

Staff Wellbeing: Since the COVID-19 pandemic and a move to more agile working, 

mental health has been on the decline as a result of increased work demands and 

feelings of loneliness due to remote working. Staff turnover is at an all-time high. 

Managing the wellbeing and associated risks is crucial to ensure a stable workforce. 

Climate Change: Councils are taking action to reduce their own carbon emissions  

and working with partners and local communities to tackle the impact of climate  

change on their local area. 

Inflation: The forecast rises in inflation after a long period of stability has had an  

impact upon term contracts as well as budget management. 

Council specific Audit Risk Review  

6.  This risk review incorporates two elements. The first element is the service’s relative  

materiality to the Council’s overall objectives and controls. The assessment includes  

consideration of: 

 

Finance Risk: The value of funds flowing through the service.   

 

Priority Risk: The strategic importance of the service in delivering 

Council priorities.   

Page 11



MID KENT AUDIT 
 

    
 

 

Support Service Risk: The extent interdependencies between Council 

departments.  

7.  The second element considers the reputational aspects of a failure of the effective  

operation of the internal control arrangements. The assessment includes  

consideration of: 

 

Oversight Risk: Considering where other agencies regulate or inspect 

the service.  

 

Change Risk: Considering the extent of change the service faces or has 

recently experienced.   

 

Audit Knowledge: What do we know about the service?  This considers 

not just our last formal review, but any other information we have 

gathered from, for example, following up agreed actions.  We also 

consider the currency of our knowledge, with an aim to conduct a full 

review in each service at least every five years if possible. 

 

 

Fraud Risk: The susceptibility of the service to fraud loss.   

Audit Risk Prioritisation 

8.  The results of these various risk assessments provide a provisional Audit Plan. The 

provisional Plan is consulted on with the Managers, Heads of Service and Corporate  

Leadership Team to get their perspective on the audit assessment and from this the 

Risk Based Audit Plan for the financial year is produced. 

Resourcing the Audit Plan 

9. MKA is currently going through a period of significant staffing change. There are 

several vacant posts within the team The Head of Mid Kent Audit is currently 

reviewing the structure. It is likely to be July 2023 at the earliest before all the 

substantive posts are filled. 

10.  MKA also have access to sources of specialist expertise through framework  

agreements with audit firms, which includes access to subject matter experts. 

Page 12



MID KENT AUDIT 
 

    
 

11.  The overall resource level is therefore based on the current audit team 

establishment and the chargeability for each grade. This calculation produces an 

available number of days across the four Councils to which MKA provides the 

internal audit service of 1,589 days.  

12.  Each Council receives a share in keeping with their contribution to the overall  

partnership budget. The Collaboration Agreement is to be subject to a  

comprehensive review during 2023/24. The Swale Audit Plan for 2023/24 is broadly 

based on the current Collaboration Agreement, but taking into account the level of 

work required to deliver an annual Audit Opinion for each authority.  This approach 

has identified 371 days to assign for the 2023/24 audit plan. 

 

13.  We hold a variety of qualifications that help to ensure that we provide a high-quality 

service. These include CIPFA, Certified and Chartered Internal Auditors, a Chartered 

Accountant, a Certified Risk Manager and Accredited Counter Fraud Technicians. We 

are also supporting an apprentice through level 7 audit qualification. This breadth of 

skills and experience, along with any new staff we will recruit as part of the review of 

the team will enable delivery of the audit plan. 

 

14. MKA has the skills and expertise to deliver the 2023/24 Audit Plan and it is confirmed 

that planned audit work will enable a Head of Audit opinion for 2023/24 to be  

delivered in Spring 2024. 

15. The actual number of days allocated are set out below: 

Audit Projects 225 days Members Support 12 days 

Consultancy 25 days Risk & Governance 51 days 

Follow-up 16 days Counter Fraud 18 days 

Audit Planning 24 days   

 

Risk Based Audit: 225 Days 

16.  The primary part of Audit Plan is delivering risk based audit engagements. The list  

below is in alphabetical and do not imply any ranking within the group or intended  

delivery order. The timings for the individual reviews will be agreed with a suitable  

officer sponsor once the Plan has been approved. 

Page 13



MID KENT AUDIT 
 

    
 

17.  The Audit Plan has been prepared in the knowledge that there is ongoing work 

throughout 2023/24 on reviewing the staffing and procedural efficiencies and 

Collaboration Agreements for Mid Kent Audit Partnership. Any proposed 

changes to the Audit Plan and the rationale for such changes, will be communicated 

to Senior Management Teams and Audit Committee Members. 

18. Below we set out our audit engagements for the year ahead. We will agree the 

detailed objectives with the service as part of planning each review: 

 Swale Borough Council Audit Plan 2023/24 

Project Title Previous 
Audit 

Previous 
Results 

Social Media 2015/16 Strong 

Safety Partnerships 2017/18 Strong 

Public Health   None 

Elections Management 2016/17 Strong 

Conservations & Heritage 2018/19 Sound 

Animal Welfare 2017/18 Sound 

Financial Planning - Bacs Project   None 

General Ledger 2016/17 Strong 

Grounds Maintenance 2017/18 Sound 

Leisure Services 2021/22 Not delivered 

Emergency Planning   None 

Performance Management 2015/16 Sound 

Housing Benefits 2016/17 Sound 

 Shared MBC/SBC     

HR Policy Compliance 2017/18 Sound 

Learning & Development 2015/16 Sound 

 Shared MBC/SBC/TWBC     

Land Charges 2017/18 Weak 

Cyber Security 2018/19 Sound 

IT Disaster Recovery 2017/18 Sound 

Compliance with Computer use policy 2014/15 sound 

 

 

Page 14



MID KENT AUDIT 
 

    
 

 

Follow-up of Agreed Actions: 16 days 

19.  Time has been allocated to following up the actions arising from internal audit  

recommendations made and reporting the results to Senior Officers and Members.  

Consultancy & Member Support: 37 days 

20.  A consultancy allocation provides general and specific extra advice or training to the  

Council. This allocation also provides support to Members, through attendance at 

and reporting to Committees.  

21.  This fund also provides a contingency to avoid having to cut short engagements and  

allow full exploration of significant findings. 

Risk Management: 51 days  

22.  At Swale MKA’s responsibility encompasses tasks such as leading the risk 

management framework, keeping and updating strategic and operational risk 

registers. The responsibility for managing the identified risks remains with the 

relevant risk owners. MKA also compiles risk reporting to Senior Officers and 

Members, including an annual report to this Committee.  

23.  The plans for developing risk management in 2023/24 are set out in the Annual Risk 

Management Report.  

Planning: 24 days  

24.  This time is allocated to complete the major part of the annual planning exercise, 

including updating risk assessments and consultation across the Council. The time is 

also used for identification of risks and issues across the Council, the wider public 

sector and the audit profession. This ensures the Audit Plan can remain dynamic and 

responsive to risk through the year.  

Counter Fraud Support: 18 days  

25.  At Swale MKA’S responsibilities include writing and updating Counter Fraud and 

Whistleblowing policies, providing a channel for officers to raise concerns under the 

Public Interest Disclosure Act. MKA also acts as lead contact for the National Fraud 

Initiative, a data matching exercise co-ordinated by the Cabinet Office.  

Page 15



MID KENT AUDIT 
 

    
 

26.  For 2023/24 it is intended to compile more detailed procedures for investigations, 

drawing on Cabinet Office Standards. We also aim to draw up training to support 

compliance with the Bribery Act and make clear where people should report any 

matters of concern.  

26.  The counter fraud support also includes conducting investigations on matters of 

concern. Additional time may be required for such work, and this will be drawn from 

the consultancy budget above.  

Page 16



Audit Committee Meeting  

Meeting Date 17th April 2023 

Report Title Risk Management Annual Report 

EMT Lead Lisa Fillery – Director of Resources 

Head of Service Katherine Woodward – Head of Audit 

Lead Officer Alison Blake – Interim Deputy Head of Audit 

Classification Open 

Recommendations 1. That the Audit Committee considers and, where 
necessary, provides comments on the operation of the 
risk management framework.   

 

1 Purpose of Report and Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide information to members of the Audit 

Committee on the Council’s risk management arrangements. As those charged 
with governance, the Committee must seek assurance over the effectiveness of 
the operation of the process. 
 

1.2 The report attached in Appendix I provides an overview of how the risk 
management process has operated throughout the year.  To demonstrate this 
process in action information relating to the Council’s risk profile is included in the 
report. 
 

1.3 We (Mid Kent Audit) have been working with the Council over the course of 
2022/23 to update and maintain the comprehensive risk register. Including 
updating the corporate and operational risks and continued reporting and 
communication of key risk information.  Throughout the year we have also 
continued to work with the Council to create a positive risk culture and ensure that 
the risk management process adds value 
 

 

2 Background 
 
2.1 The Council’s risk management arrangements are detailed within its Risk 

Management Framework.  This was reviewed and updated during the latter part 
of 2021/22 with the final version being approved by Audit Committee in July 2023. 

 

3 Proposals 
 
3.1 Effective risk management is a key component of sound governance. This 

Committee, as those charged with governance, must gain assurance that the 
Council is operating an effective risk management process, and that risks are 
being managed. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 
3.2 We therefore propose that the Committee notes the arrangements in place and 

provides comments on the operation of the risk management process. 
 
 

4 Alternative Options 
 
4.1 In order for any risk management process to be effective it is vital that risk 

information is reported, that risks are monitored and that action is taken to 
manage risks to an acceptable level. Reporting risks to Members is necessary to 
provide assurance that risks are being managed. 

 
4.2 An alternative option would be to not report or monitor risks, but this would 

counter the effectiveness of the process, and would go against the terms of 
reference for this Committee. 

 

5 Consultation Undertaken or Proposed 
 
5.1 The risk management framework was designed through consultation with Senior 

Management Team and Audit Committee Members.  
 
5.2 All risk owners have been involved in the identification and assessment of the 

risks on the register. 
 

6 Implications 
 
 

Issue Implications 

Corporate Plan Effective risk management is part of the Council’s governance 
framework. The purpose of the risk management process is to 
ensure that key risks are identified and appropriately managed as 
the Council pursues its Corporate objectives. 

Financial, 
Resource and 
Property 

Investment in developing risk management arrangements are 
being met from existing resources within the Mid Kent Audit 
partnership.  

No implications identified at this stage. 

Legal, Statutory 
and Procurement 

None identified at this stage 

Crime and 
Disorder 

None identified at this stage 

Environment and 
Climate/Ecological 
Emergency 

None identified at this stage 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

None identified at this stage 

Page 18



Safeguarding of 
Children, Young 
People and 
Vulnerable Adults 

None identified at this stage 

Risk Management 
and Health and 
Safety 

This report is about risk management.  

No H&S implications identified at this stage. 

Equality and 
Diversity 

None identified at this stage 

Privacy and Data 
Protection 

None identified at this stage 

 

7 Appendices 
 
7.1 The following documents are to be published with this report and form part of the 

report: 

• Appendix I: Annual Risk Management Report 
 
 

8 Background Papers 
 

• Risk Management Framework  

Page 19

https://services.swale.gov.uk/meetings/documents/s23804/Appendix%20I%20Swale%20Risk%20Management%20Framework%20-%202022%20Draft.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Risk Management  

Annual Report 
 

April 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 21



2 
 

Executive Summary 

A key principle of good governance is managing the effect of uncertainties on the achievement of our 
objectives (our risks). Having arrangements in place to identify and manage our risks increases the 
probability of achieving corporate and operational objectives by controlling risks in balance with resources.  
Good risk management also increases our ability to cope with developing and uncertain events and helps 
to instil a culture of continuous improvement and optimisation.  

This report summarises the risk management work undertaken during 2022-23.  It provides assurance to 
Members of the Audit Committee that the Council has effective risk management arrangements in place.  
These processes ensure risks are identified and managed across the Council, with a focus on the most 
significant risks to the Council. 

 

Roles and Responsibilities 

We (Mid Kent Audit) are responsible for facilitating and coordinating the risk management processes 
across the Council.  Our role includes regular reporting to officers and Members, through the Strategic 
Management Team (SMT), Policy & Resources Committee (PRC) and the Audit Committee.  We also 
provide workshops and training, and support the embedding of risk management throughout the Council.   

Having valuable and up to date risk information enables oversight functions to happen effectively. The PRC 
has overall responsibility for the risks identified through the risk process and will review the substance of 
individual risks to ensure that issues are appropriately monitored and addressed.  

As those charged with governance and oversight the Audit Committee are required to seek assurance that 
the Council is operating an effective risk management process.  This report enables the Audit Committee 
to fulfil the responsibilities as set out in the Terms of Reference: 

To provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk 

management framework and the associated control environment … 

To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management 

and corporate governance in the Council. 

 

  

Page 22



3 
 

Risk Management Process 

A risk is a potential event that, if it materialises, effects the achievement of objectives.  Risk management 

is the process of identifying, measuring and responding to risks.  These processes help to ensure that the 

Council achieves its corporate and service objectives by controlling risks in balance with resources.  Good 

risk management also increases our ability to cope with developing and uncertain events and helps to instil 

a culture of continuous improvement and optimisation. 

The Risk Management Framework sets out the Council’s approach to managing corporate and operational 

(service) risks.  The risk management process is broken down into the following key components, which 

start with being clear about what the Council, or service are trying to achieve.  Appendix Ia sets out how 

the Council evaluates its risks. 

 

The Risk Management Framework also includes the Council’s risk appetite statement, which articulates 

how much risk the Council is comfortable with and able to bear.  The Council recognises that to achieve its 

objectives it must take risks, but that some risks are unacceptable (above our tolerance) and so action 

should be taken immediately to manage these risks.  Risk appetite and tolerance are illustrated in the 

following matrix: 

 

Page 23



4 
 

Risk Management in Action: 2022-23 

Throughout the year the risk management processes have operated in line with the Council’s Risk 
Management Framework (as described above).  The following risk matrices show the current risk profile as 
reported to Audit Committee in March 2022 and as at March 2023.  The current risk represents the 
likelihood and impact of the risk based on our understanding of the future uncertainty at this moment in 
time.   

The diagrams summarise the changes to the profile with the overall number of risks decreasing from 147 
to 130.  It should be noted that in July 2022 Audit Committee agreed a new Risk Management Framework 
which changed the criteria for scoring risks and the Council’s risk appetite – hence the significant reduction 
in the total number of red risks.  Further explanation of these changes is provided below. 

 

During the year we completed the roll out of the Council’s risk management software – JCAD.  The 

software is accessible to all risk owners and senior management allowing them to directly view and update 

their risks.  JCAD provides a more efficient risk management process and more effective reporting of risk 

information than the previous spreadsheet-based process.  Alongside training risk owners on the use of 

JCAD we reviewed and updated all operational risks to ensure the risks remain current and reflect the new 

Risk Management Framework.  Risk owners are engaging well with the system and with understanding and 

updating their risks. 

Training has been provided during the year for both officers and Members on the principles of risk 

management and the Council’s Risk Management processes.   

Page 24



5 
 

 

The Council continues to monitor and update its corporate risks.  The corporate risks are those risks which 
have an affect across Council services and may affect delivery of the Council’s strategic priorities.  
Throughout the year these risks have been routinely updated by risk owners and reported quarterly to 
SMT and 6-montholy to PRC.  The following table shows the Council’s corporate risks and how the risk 
score has changed throughout the year. 

 

  

Page 25



6 
 

Operational risk registers for all services were refreshed during the summer alongside the roll out of JCAD.  
All Council services, including shared services, have identified risks which may affect delivery of their 
service objectives or wider Council priorities.  The following matrices show the current risk profile at March 
2022 and March 2023 (i.e. the risks as understood on those dates) and the mitigated profile (i.e. the risk 
after planned actions are introduced). 

 

As can be seen there is one black operational risk which is currently being managed and actions have been 
identified to reduce the risk.  This risk is routinely monitored by the risk owner and SMT, and is as follows: 

Risk Current 
Score 

Mitigated 
Score 

Provision and cost of Temporary Accommodation 20 16 

 

The Council has approximately 21 services, including shared services, meaning there’s an average of 5 risks 

identified for each service.  Risk owners review and update operational risks in line with the Risk 

Management Framework: the highest (red/black) risks are reviewed at least quarterly and reported to 

SMT, amber risks are reviewed 6-monthly and green risks annually.  This process is automated through 

JCAD.  Reviewing risks in this way enables us to focus resources on managing the most significant risks to 

the Council, while ensuring we maintain awareness of risks that are increasing.    

Page 26



7 
 

Risk Management in 2023-24  

Due to resources within Mid Kent Audit the actual number of risk management days delivered in 2022-23 
is lower than planned.  Audit Committee agreed 52 days of risk management work and 45 days have been 
delivered.  The focus of the work is as outlined in the previous section of this report, with originally 
planned work on refreshing corporate risks and developing project risk guidance not having progressed. 

The following key areas of work have been identified for 2023-24: 

• Maintain routine risk processes, ensuring risks are reviewed and key risk information is reported in 
line with the Framework. 

• Provide risk training to both officers and Members, including as part of Member induction. 

• Refresh the Council’s Corporate Risk Register with Members and senior management to ensure 
risks to the Council’s strategic priorities are adequately captured and risk appetite understood. 

• Continue to refine and enhance JCAD, in particular building on its reporting capability. 

• Establish a risk group to share risk information across the Council.   

• Explore the use of JCAD to capture and monitor business continuity risks. 

The overall number of days for this work would be 51 days and have been considered within the context of 
the wider Mid Kent Audit plans for 2023-24 and the resources available.   

 

 

 

 

  

Page 27



8 
 

 

  APPENDIX Ia  Definitions for Impact and Likelihood 

The overall risk score is comprised of impact and likelihood.  So that we achieve a more consistent understanding 

when assessing risks, the following definitions are used to inform the assessment of risks.  

RISK IMPACT 

Level Service  Reputation Wellbeing Legal/Compliance Financial Strategic Objectives 

Catastrophic 
(5) 

Ongoing failure to 
provide an 
adequate service in 
a key area 

Perceived as a 
failing authority 
requiring 
intervention 

Significant staff 
dissatisfaction, long 
term absence, or 
increased staff 
turnover including 
key personnel 

Litigation almost certain 
and difficult to defend. 
Breaches of law 
punishable by 
imprisonment. Possible 
responsibility for death. 

Uncontrollable 
financial loss or 
overspend over £1.5m 

Failure to deliver 
multiple key 
priorities 

Major (4) Key service areas 
disrupted 5+ days  
Other service areas 
ongoing failure 

Significant 
adverse national 
publicity 

Adverse staff 
dissatisfaction, or 
increased absence 
and turnover of 
staff 

Litigation expected and 
uncertain if defensible. 
Breaches of law 
punishable by significant 
fines. Fails to prevent 
death, causes extensive 
permanent injuries or 
long-term sick 

Financial loss or 
overspend greater 
than £1m 

Failure to deliver 
key priority 

Moderate (3) Key service 
disruption 3-5 days 
Other service 
disruption 7+ days 

Adverse national 
publicity of 
significant 
adverse local 
publicity 

Declining staff 
satisfaction, or 
some loss of staff 
due to absence or 
turnover 

Litigation expected but 
defensible. 
Breaches of law 
punishable by fines. Fails 
to prevent extensive 
permanent injuries or 
long- term sick. 

Financial loss or 
overspend greater 
than £700k 

Unsatisfactory 
delivery of priorities 

Minor (2) Key service 
disruption 2 days 
Other service 
disruption 2-7 days 

Minor adverse 
local publicity 

Short-term 
dissatisfaction, 
minor loss of staff 
due to absence or 
turnover 

Complaint or litigation 
possible. 
Breaches of regulations or 
standards. Long term 
injuries or sickness. 

Financial loss or 
overspend greater 
than £100k 

Poor delivery of 
priorities 

Minimal (1) Any service 
disruption 1+ day 

Unlikely to cause 
adverse publicity 

Loss of staff morale 
but unlikely to 
result in absence or 
turnover of staff 

Unlikely to cause 
complaint. 
Breaches of local 
procedures. 

Financial loss or 
overspend under 
£100k 

Minimal reduction 
in delivery of 
priorities 

 

RISK LIKELIHOOD 

 

Page 28



P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



Commercial in confidence

 

 

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

 

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

P
age 34



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

P
age 39



Commercial in confidence

P
age 40



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 41



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 50



P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

P
age 54



P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 57

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

P
age 59



Commercial in confidence

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 61



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 62



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 66



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 67



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 68



Commercial in confidence












P
age 69



Commercial in confidence

P
age 70



Commercial in confidence

P
age 71



Commercial in confidence

16

Planned level IT audit assessmentAudit areaIT system

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 72



Commercial in confidence

P
age 73



Commercial in confidence

18

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 74



Commercial in confidence









.

P
age 75



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

P
age 76



Commercial in confidence

.

P
age 77



Commercial in confidence

P
age 78



Commercial in confidence





























.

P
age 79



P
age 80


	Agenda
	4 Internal Audit Plan 2023-24
	SBC AC report

	5 Risk Management Annual Report
	Appendix I - Annual Risk Management Report

	6 Auditor Annual Report 2021-22
	7 Audit Plan 2022-23

